
   

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

REGULATORY AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Monday, 16 May 2016 
 
Time:  10.30 am 
 
Place: LB 31 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Corporate Director for Resilience 
 
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley   Direct Dial: 0115 876 4302 
 
 

   
1  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  

 
 

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
If you need advice declaring an interest, please call the Governance 
Officer, if possible before the day of the meeting 
 

 

4  MINUTES  
Last meeting held on 21 March 2016 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 4 

5  PRIVATE SHOP, 81-85 UPPER PARLIAMENT STREET, NG1 6LD - 
APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE  
Report of Corporate Director of Commercial and Operations 
 

5 - 22 

 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC.  ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING 

AND REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK.  INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 

MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
REGULATORY AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at LB 31 - Loxley House, Station Street, 
Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 21 March 2016 from 10.32am - 10.42am 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Brian Grocock (Chair) 
Councillor Mohammed Ibrahim 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Sue Johnson 
Councillor Linda Woodings 
Councillor Jim Armstrong 
 

Councillor David Smith 
Councillor Liaqat Ali 
Councillor Carole McCulloch 
Councillor Michael Wildgust 
Councillor Wendy Smith 
Councillor Rosemary Healy 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance 
 
Rav Kalsi Senior Governance Officer 
Angela Rawson Licensing Manager 
Tamazin Wilson Solicitor 
 
23  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Liaqat Ali   ) 
Councillor Rosemary Healy ) other Council business 
Councillor Carole McCulloch ) 
 
Councillor David Smith  ) 
Councillor Wendy Smith  ) personal 
Councillor Mick Wildgust  ) 
 
24  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
25  MINUTES 

 
The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2015 as 
a correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
26  HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE - FORD TOURNEO CUSTOM 

 
Angela Rawson, Licensing Manager, informed the Committee that there would be no 
vehicle for inspection, as agreed, prior to the Committee meeting. Without advance 
sight of the vehicle the Committee considered whether to adjourn the Committee to a 
suitable date at which the vehicle could be supplied for inspection. 
 
RESOLVED to adjourn the Committee to a date to be confirmed. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ARBORETUM AND BRIDGE            
 

                                REGULATORY AND APPE ALS COMMITTEE  
                                                                               16th May 2016 

 

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL & OPERAT IONS  
APPLICATION FOR A RENEWAL  OF A SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE 
PRIVATE SHOP, 81-85 UPPER PARLIAMENT STREET, NOTTIN GHAM 
 

1.0  SUMMARY 
 
1.1  This application is for a renewal of a sex establishment licence for premises at 

Private Shop, 81-85 Upper Parliament Street, Nottingham, NG1 6LD. The 
application was received on 14 March 2016, a copy of the application is attached 
to the report.  

 
 

2.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED that the Committee determine the renewal 
application. 
 

3.0  BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 These premises have been licensed as a sex shop since 2004. The current 
licence had been  due to expire on 4 April 2016.  However, as the  application for 
renewal was submitted  prior to expiry the current licence remains in force until 
the application for renewal is determined. A copy of that  licence is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
3.2  The renewal application has been advertised in the Nottingham Evening Post 

and exhibited on the premises in accordance with the legislative requirements. 
There has also been consultation with Ward Councillors (including those of the 
immediately adjacent wards,) Police, The Chief Fire Officer, Social Services, 
Trading Standards, Planning, Programmes & Strategies and the Health & Safety 
Officer. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 2. No objections have 
been received to the application.  

 
3.3  Private Shop, 81-85 Upper Parliament Street is not situated next to any schools; 

shopping complex neither is it located in a residential area.  There is an enclosed 
lobby entrance and the interior of the shop cannot be seen into when the doors 
are opened or closed. A map showing the location of the premises is attached at 
Appendix 3. 

  
 
3.4 No compliance issues or complaints have been reported to the Licensing Section 

relating to these premises.   
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

None  
 

5.0  LEGAL AND POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1  Each application should be determined on its own merits. However, to comply 
with section 12 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982   
applications can  only be refused on certain  specified mandatory or discretionary 
grounds.   Objections should only be afforded weight in so far as they relate to 
the statutory grounds of refusal.   

 
5.2 Mandatory grounds 

The Council must refuse an application if:- 
• The applicant is under 18 years if age; or 
• The applicant has been disqualified from holding a licence under 

Schedule 3 paragraph (17)(3) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 following revocation of a 
previous licence; or 

• The person applying is not a resident of a European Economic 
Area State, or was not resident during the six month period 
preceding the date of the application; or 

• Where a company is the applicant it is not incorporated in a 
European Economic Area State; or 

• The applicant has been refused a licence for the same premises 
within the preceding 12 months unless the refusal has been 
reversed on appeal. 

 
5.3 Discretionary grounds 

The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a licence if:- 
• The applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of 

conviction of an offence or for any other reason: or 
• The business would be managed or carried on for the benefit of a 

person other than the applicant who would be refused the licence if 
they made the application themselves: or 

• The number of sex establishments, or sex establishments of a 
particular type, in the relevant locality at the time the application is 
made is equal to or exceeds the number the number which the 
Council considers appropriate for that locality: or 

• The grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having 
regard to:- 
(i) the character of the relevant locality, or 
(ii) the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or 

  (iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises to which the 
  application applies. 
 

5.4 On 17 January 2011 this Committee adopted a policy on Sex Establishments, 
The following sections of the Council’s Policy may be relevant:  
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 
“Section 4.4 - Suitability of the Applicant 
 
The applicant will be required to demonstrate that he/she is a suitable person to 
hold a licence. In determining suitability, the Council will normally take into 
account: 

• previous knowledge and experience of the applicant; 
• information relating to the operation of any existing/previous licence 

held by the applicant, including any licence held in any other local 
authority area; 

• information about the applicant and their management of the 
premises received from objectors, Council Officers or the Police 
including any known criminal convictions or cautions  the applicant, 
or officers of any corporate applicants may have; 

• any other relevant information. 
 

The above factors are not an exhaustive list of considerations but are merely 
indicative of the types of factors which may be considered in dealing with an 
application. Similar considerations may also apply to persons whom it is alleged 
would benefit from the grant of the application but would be unsuitable to hold the 
licence themselves. In such cases the Council will also have regard to any 
evidence to show that the business would in fact be carried on for their benefit. 
 
Section 4.5 -Character of the Relevant Locality and  use of other premises in 
the vicinity 
The Council will not grant or renew a licence for a Sex Establishment if, in the 
Council’s opinion, it would be inappropriate to do so with regard to the character 
of the Relevant Locality or if the appropriate number of Sex Establishments, (or 
of a particular type of Sex Establishment,) in that Locality would be exceeded. 
Whilst not intended to be an exclusive list, the Council will have particular regard 
to the following matters:-  
 

•  The proximity of residential premises, including any sheltered              
housing and accommodation for vulnerable people; 

• The proximity of educational establishments; 
• The proximity of places of worship; 
• Access routes to and from schools, play areas, nurseries, 

children’s centres or similar premises in proximity to the premises; 
• The proximity to shopping centres; 
• The proximity to health facilities, community facilities/halls and 

public buildings such as swimming pools, leisure centres, public 
parks, youth centres/clubs, etc; 

• Any planned or proposed regeneration of the area. 
• Any relevant planning considerations such as whether the 

premises are in a Conservation Area or areas designated as 
primarily residential or prime retail frontage; 

Page 7



• Any complaints or reports of nuisance,  disturbance, crime and /or 
disorder caused by or associated with the premises 

• The proximity of other Sex Establishments 
Many of these issues will also be relevant when considering the uses to 
which other premises within the vicinity are put.  

 
Section 4.6 - Layout, Character and Condition  
The Council will not grant or renew a licence for a Sex Establishment if, in the 
Council’s opinion it would be inappropriate having regard to the layout, character 
and condition of the proposed Sex Establishment.  Whilst not intended to be an 
exclusive list, the Council will have particular regard to the following:- 

• The type of activity to which the application relates; 
• The days and hours of operation of the Activity; 
• The layout and condition of the premises with particular concern for 

public safety, health and safety and the prevention of crime and 
disorder 

 
Section 4.8 – Conditions  
Any licence granted by the Council, shall be subject to the relevant standard 
conditions (unless the Council determines to the contrary,) and to any special 
conditions which the Council imposes.” 
  

5.5 If the application is granted the licence will be subject to the standard conditions 
which are attached at Appendix 4 unless the Committee agrees otherwise. In 
addition the Committee has the power to attach further conditions or restrictions 
as it feels appropriate and this includes the power to determine operating hours 
for the premises.  

 
6.0  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
None 
 

  7.0  STRATEGIC AIMS 
 

• Creating a more attractive place to live, work and visit. 
• Making Nottingham a safer city – Working with communities and 

partners to reduce crime and fear of crime and promoting community 
safety. 

 
8.0  CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 

 
Close partnership working between the City Council, applicants, the local 
community and enforcement agencies is key to the successful delivery of 
the licensing regime. A key aim of the City Council is to reduce the risk of 
crime and disorder occurring in local neighbourhoods and the community 
in general. 
 

9.0  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED  WORKS 
OR THOSE DISCLOSING CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT INFORMAT ION 

Page 8



 
• Memo from Compliance Officer dated 12th April 2016 
 

 
10.0  PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS 

REPORT 
 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by Section 
27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009.  
 
Sex Establishment Nottingham City Policy & Procedures dated January 2011 

 
 

11.0  COPYRIGHT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

11.1  Nottingham City Council has adopted a policy of making agendas and reports 
available for public inspection by electronic means. Where material from sources 
other than the City Council is reproduced either in whole or in part as part of a 
Committee report, copyright of such material is acknowledged. 
 

11.2  Where the copyright holder of such material objects to the practice of its further 
publication for viewing by electronic means, they should contact the officer(s) 
named below in the first instance who will arrange for its removal. 
 
ANDREW ERRINGTON,  
DIRECTOR COMMUNITY PROTECTION 
CENTRAL POLICE STATION, BYRON HOUSE, MAID MARIAN WA Y, 
NOTTINGHAM  
NG1 6HS 
 
Contact Officer:  Melanie Bird  
Telephone number: 0115 876 1757 
email: melanie.bird@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 
Legal Observations by: Judith Irwin  
Telephone number: 0115 876 4419 
email: judith.irwin@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9



   
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 Communities  
  Licensing 
 Tamar Building 
 Eastcroft Depot 
 London Road 
 Nottingham 
 NG2 3AH 

                                                                Tel: 0115 876 1751 
                                                               Fax: 0115 876 1769 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 198 2  
 
LICENCE FOR SEX ESTABLISHMENT 
 
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL hereby grant to Darker Enterprises Limited 
 
Of Unit 11B, Trade City, Ashton Road, Harold Hill, Romford, Essex, RM3 8UJ 
 
this licence to use the premises situate at Private Shop,  81- 85 Upper Parliament 
Street, Nottingham  NG1 6LD 
 
for the purpose of a sex shop 
 
This licence shall continue in force from 5 April 2015  until 4 April 2016 
 
or until sooner revoked and is granted subject to the conditions imposed by the City 
Council set out below. 
 
Dated :  5 June 2015  
 
Signed 
            Licensing Manager  
 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 
1. The Premises shall be maintained in accordance w ith the lay out plan 

attached to this Licence. Amendments to the layout of the premises and/or 
any structural or physical alteration must be appro ved by way of an 
application for variation of this licence unless ot herwise agreed in writing 
by the Council 

 
2 No-one shall be admitted to the premises who is, or appears to be, under 

the age of 18. 
 

3 No person under the age of 18 shall be employed o n the premises. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 10



4. The Licensee or some responsible person nominate d by him in writing for 
the purpose shall be in charge of and present on th e premises while they 
are open to the public. 

 
5. No change may be made from a Sex Shop to a Sex C inema, or Sexual 

Entertainment Venue or vice versa. 
 

6. A window display shall be maintained to the sati sfaction of the Council in 
all windows of the Licensed Premises. Such display shall not include any 
Sex Articles or other indecent matter. 

 
7. No Sex Articles shall be displayed within the pr emises as to be visible to 

passers by, whether the doors are open or closed. 
 

8. For the purposes of these conditions  
• The Council means Nottingham City  Council 
• Sex Article has the meaning assigned to it in Parag raph 4 of 

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982. 

• Sex Cinema has the meaning assigned to it in Paragr aph 3 
of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneou s 
Provisions) Act 1982. 

• Sex Shop has the meaning assigned to it in Paragrap h 4 of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982. 

• Sexual Entertainment Venue has the meaning assigned  to it 
in Paragraph 2A of Schedule 3 of the Local Governme nt 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
1.   There must be CCTV coverage of the shop entran ce while the premises 

are open to the public 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Private Shop, 81-85 Upper Parliament Street, NG1 6LD - Application for renewal of Sex Establishment licence

